2008

Mark D. Bergman v. Debbie A. Burke, Dorene R. Basug, First American Title : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This appeal is within the general jurisdiction of Utah Code Ann. § 78A-4-103(2) (j) and does not involve any matter or issue within the exclusive jurisdiction of the Utah Supreme Court. After opinion the Utah Supreme Court, ordered this appeal transferred to this Utah Appellate Court by order dated September 29, 2008.

AUTHORITY FOR FEDERAL CASE LAW RELIANCE

The Plaintiff's reliance on the State of Utah and U.S. Federal case law throughout this opinion is appropriate. *See* State v. Rothlisberger, 2004 UT App 226, P14, 95 P.3d 1193 ("In circumstances in which Utah courts have not definitively addressed an issue, it is appropriate to turn to decisions . . . that interpret related federal rules for guidance."), *cert. granted*, 106 P.3d 743 (Utah 2004) (quoting from Nat'l Advertising Co. v Murray City Corp. et. al., 131 P.3d 872 (2006 UT App)).

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

STANDARD OF REVIEW – DETERMINATIVE LAW

The primary issues to be determined on appeal include the following:

Issue (A) : Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion on or about May 12, 2008, when it moved sua sponte and stayed the Plaintiff's 60(b) motion?

Standard of review: We review rule 60(b) determinations under an abuse of discretion standard.

Determinative law: Utah R. Civ. P. Rule 62. Stay of proceedings to enforce a judgment. ~ (b) Stay on motion for a new trial or for judgment.

Utah Code Ann. § 78A-2-223. Decisions to be rendered within two months. ~

(1) A trial court judge shall decide all matters submitted for final determination within two months of submission, unless circumstances causing the delay are beyond the judge's personal control.

Utah Code Ann. § 78A-5-102 (Superseded 01/01/09). Jurisdiction -- Appeals.

(1) The district court has original jurisdiction in all matters civil and criminal, not excepted in the Utah Constitution and not prohibited by law.

(4) The district court has jurisdiction over all matters properly filed in the circuit court prior to July 1, 1996.

"A trial court has discretion in determining whether a movant has shown [rule 60(b) grounds], and this Court will reverse the trial court's ruling only when there has been an abuse of discretion." Ostler v. Buhler, 957 P.2d 205, 206 (Utah 1998) (quoting Larsen v. Collina, 684 P.2d 52, 54 (Utah 1984)).

(quoting from Oseguera v. Farmers Ins. Exch., 2003 UT App 46.)

Baker v. Western Sur. Co., 757 P.2d 878 (Utah Ct. App. 1988), We further held that if the district court finds the motion to be without merit, it may enter an order denying the motion, and the parties may appeal from that order.

Issue (B) : Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it elected to not inform the Plaintiff or issue a court order detailing the grounds for the stay?

Standard of review: We review rule 60(b) determinations under an abuse of discretion standard.

Determinative law: "Stay" As defined in Barron's Law Dictionary, Third Edition

~ STAY a judicial order whereby some action is forbidden or held in abeyance until some event occurs or the court lifts its order.

Utah R. Civ. P. Rule 62. Stay of proceedings to enforce a judgment.

~ (b) Stay on motion for a new trial or for judgment.

Utah Code Ann. § 78A-2-223. Decisions to be rendered within two months. ~

(1) A trial court judge shall decide all matters submitted for final

determination within two months of submission, unless circumstances

causing the delay are beyond the judge's personal control.

Baker v. Western Sur. Co., 757 P.2d 878 (Utah Ct. App. 1988), We further

held that if the district court finds the motion to be without merit, it may enter an order denying the motion, and the parties may appeal from that order.

Issue (C) : Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion and/or commit a crime and/or divest its jurisdiction over the 60(b) motion when the Trial Court violated Utah Code Ann. § 78A-2-223(1)?

Standard of review: We review rule 60(b) determinations under an abuse of discretion standard.

Determinative law: Utah Code Ann. § 76-2-304. Ignorance or mistake of fact or law.

(2) Ignorance or mistake concerning the existence or meaning of a penal law is no defense to a crime unless:

Utah Code Ann. § 78A-2-411. Crimes:

Any violation of the provisions of this chapter, except Section **78A-2-404**, is a misdemeanor.

Baker v. Western Sur. Co., 757 P.2d 878 (Utah Ct. App. 1988), We further

held that if the district court finds the motion to be without merit, it may enter an order denying the motion, and the parties may appeal from that order.

Issue (D) : Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion (after it violated 78A-2-223(1)) when it issued a ruling upon the 60(b) motion?

- a. without showing that it had jurisdiction?
- b. without showing that the circumstances causing the delay were legally beyond the judge's personal control?
- c. without receiving procedures from the Utah Judicial Council?

Standard of review: We review rule 60(b) determinations under an abuse of discretion standard.

Determinative law: Utah Code Ann. § 78A-2-223 Decisions to be rendered within two months.~ Procedures for decisions not rendered.

(1) A trial court judge shall decide all matters submitted for final determination within two months of submission, unless circumstances causing the delay are beyond the judge's personal control.

(2) The Judicial Council shall establish reporting procedures for all matters not decided within two months of final submission.

"[T]he initial inquiry of any court should always be to determine whether the requested action is within its jurisdiction." Varian-Eimac, Inc. v. Lamoreaux, 767 P.2d 569, 570 (Utah Ct. App. 1989). "When a matter is outside the court's jurisdiction it retains only the authority to dismiss the action." *Id.*

(Quoting from AKJ v. State (In re DECJ) 2008 UT App 341)

Issue (E) : Did the Trial Court exceed the bounds of sound discretion in denying Plaintiff's 60(b) motion, without reviewing all of the evidence, without a hearing or without considering any argument from the opposing party?

Standard of review: We review rule 60(b) determinations under an abuse of discretion standard.

Determinative law: Canon 3.

(5). A judge shall perform judicial duties without bias or prejudice. A judge shall not, in the performance of judicial duties, by words or conduct manifest bias or prejudice

(7) A judge shall accord to every person who is legally interested in a proceeding, or that person's lawyer, full right to be heard according to law. Except as authorized by law, a judge shall neither initiate nor consider, and shall discourage, ex parte or other communications concerning a pending or impending proceeding.

(8) A judge shall dispose of all judicial matters promptly, efficiently, and fairly.

C. (1) A judge shall diligently discharge the judge's administrative responsibilities without bias or prejudice, maintain professional competence in judicial administration,

Issue (F) : Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it found, “However, Plaintiff’s evidence fails to prove that the Defendant’s witnesses gave false testimony.”

Standard of review: We review rule 60(b) determinations under an abuse of discretion standard.

Determinative law: Canon 3.

(5) A judge shall perform judicial duties without bias or prejudice.

Our supreme court has defined "prima facie evidence" as follows: "Such evidence as, in the judgment of the law is sufficient to establish a given fact, or the group or chain of facts constituting the party's claim or depose, and which if not rebutted or contradicted, will remain sufficient." *State v. Asay*, 631 P.2d 861, 864 (Utah 1981) (citation omitted). (quoting from *J.V. Hatch Constr., Inc. v. Kampros*, 971 P.2d 8, 15 (Utah Ct. App. 1998))

It is well settled that payment is an affirmative defense, and that the party claiming payment has the burden of proving it. *Scott v. Austin*, 47 Utah 248, 152 P. 1178; *Filice v. Biscardi*, 67 Utah 171, 246 P. 535. See, also, 48 C.J. 680, “Payments,” § 176. And as to judgments see 34 C.J. 694, § 1071. (quoting *Marks v. Marks*, 1940 UT, 100 P.2d 207).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case came for trial on November 13, 2007, before the Honorable Parley R. Baldwin, on the Plaintiff's single cause of action relating to the foreclosure of a mechanic's lien recorded upon the Defendant's real property, pursuant to which the Plaintiff claimed to have a legal interest in the Defendant's real property and the home thereon. After a two-day bench trial, Judge Baldwin requested the parties submit closing arguments in writing, due to lack of available time of the Court.

On or about January 16, 2008, the Trial Court entered its final Judgment pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P. Rule 54 on the record.

On or about January 24, 2008, the Plaintiff filed a motion pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P. Rule 59(a)(6), requesting the Trial Court to consider altering or amending its judgment of January 16, 2008.

On or about April 3, 2008, the Plaintiff filed a motion, memorandum, and affidavit with the Trial Court, pursuant to the Utah R. Civ. P. Rule 60(b), requesting relief from the Trial Court's judgment of January 16, 2008, due to fraud committed on the court.

On or about April 7, 2008, the Plaintiff filed a Notice of Appeal with the Trial Court (Utah Appeal Case No. 20080323-CA), taken from the entire judgment entered on January 16, 2008.

On or about April 21, 2008, the Plaintiff pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P. Rule 7(d), filed a Request to Submit for Decision with the Court Clerk. Additionally, whereas the computation of time had expired as per Utah R. Civ. P. Rule 7(c)(1), the Plaintiff requested the Trial Court consider the motion closed, and pleadings complete. The Defendant did not file a timely reply memorandum or oppose this motion.

On or about July 1, 2008, the Plaintiff discovered that, on or about May 12, 2008, counsel for the defense communicated ex-parte with the Trial Judge requesting the Trial Judge sign four (4) pending post trial court orders. The Plaintiff subsequently learned that a discussion transpired concerning the Plaintiff's pending 60(b) motion, and a decision was made by the Trial Court to remove the Plaintiff's 60(b) motion from under advisement, without any communication or notice to the Plaintiff.

Furthermore, the Trial Judge also elected not to address the 60(b) motion, and stayed the Plaintiff's Request to Submit until there was a decision from the Supreme Court.

The Trial Court issued no memorandum decision, no court orders, and no documentation disclosing this action, the only evidence that such actions occurred is the entries on the case docket, as the case record discloses nothing.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT DISCLOSE

THE STAY TO THE PLAINTIFF.

When the Trial Judge learned that the Plaintiff had discovered the stay, months after it had been entered, and was communicating with the Utah Court Administration, the Utah Judicial Council, and the Utah Judicial Conduct Commission concerning the Trial Judge's violation of several Utah State Codes and Utah Court Rules, Judge Baldwin changed his position on or about August 7, 2008 (108 days after the Plaintiff filed the Request to Submit), seized the Plaintiff's 60(b) motion and denied it.

This appeal followed.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The dates May 12 and May 13, 2008, play a very important role throughout the following brief, and the Plaintiff requests that such date be given special interest. One reason that May 12, 2008, is of interest to this action, the Plaintiff's primary Docketing Statement for Utah Appellate Court Case No. 200800323-CA became due on May 12, 2008 (SEE; Utah Supreme Court Order of April 29, 2008). All parties to the said appeal are the same parties to the present appeal at issue, and all parties are made aware of the filing deadlines by the Appeals court.

On or about July 1, 2008, the Plaintiff obtained a current copy of the case docket. Examination of the docket revealed that on or about May 12, 2008, counsel for the Defense communicated ex-parte with the Trial Judge, and such communication resulted in the following events, none of which was disclosed or communicated to the Plaintiff:

May 12, 2008

1. The Trial Clerk made two (2) separate entries stating that Judge Baldwin signed and filed four (4) court orders. The Trial Court received these orders twenty-five (25) days earlier on or about April 18, 2008, and the Plaintiff had inquired several times as to their status, and was told time and time again, when the Judge gets time he will sign them. The Plaintiff's efforts seemed to fall on deaf ears at the court.

May 12, 2008

2. The Trial Judge requested the Trial Clerk to make an entry on the docket
“Tracking ended for under advisement,” (removing the Plaintiff’s 60(b)
motion from under advisement).

May 12, 2008

3. The Trial Judge requested the Trial Clerk to make an entry on the docket
“Request to submit for decision is stayed until there is a decision from the
Supreme Court,” (the Trial Judge stayed the Plaintiff’s 60(b) motion). The
Trial Judge also elected not to issue a court order, memorandum, or any
documentation concerning this stay. The only record of this ever happening
is on the case docket.

May 12, 2008

4. The next entry on the case docket, Fee Account created: Total Due: \$2.00
Payment Received: \$2.00. (charge for a Court Clerk to make copies for
Defense Counsel).

May 13, 2008

5. The next entry on the case docket, Filed: Notice of Appeal (Defense Counsel
files Notice of Appeal on behalf of the Defendant).

The Plaintiff received by mail a copy of the Defendant's Notice of Appeal on or about May 14, 2008. Attached thereto as Defendant's Exhibit "B" is a copy of the four (4) court orders that are **STAMPED NOT SIGNED** on May 12, 2008.

An examination of the actual court orders on record at the court are in fact signed by the Trial Judge, only the handwriting is very different where ~~April~~ is scratched out and May is written in and the date 12th is also hand written, the real court orders carry a different page placement of the date stamps, and they carry a stamp on their face of the date filed on the record. The court orders on record with the court are NOT the same documents that Defense Counsel attached as Exhibit "B" to the Defendant's Notice of Appeal.

To examine the difference between the handwriting of the Trial Judge's and the handwriting on the fake court orders is very easy. Defendant's Exhibit "A" attached to the same Notice of Appeal is the Trial Judge's hand written 21 day of February.

Further evidence that makes this entire incident viable and a highly likely scenario of the actual events that occurred when the Plaintiff questioned the Chief Deputy Clerk of the Court. The Plaintiff was advised, after checking the Trial Judge's court log, that the Judge was not on the bench on May 12, 2008.

Other facts surrounding the STAMPED Court Orders that are attached to the Defendant's Notice of Appeal that are also significant:

Appellant's/Plaintiff's 60(b) Case Brief

1. The Trial Court did not mail copies of the stamped or signed orders to the parties. It is not possible that Defense Counsel could have received the orders by mail in Salt Lake City and subsequently have the Defendant's Notice of Appeal filed with the Weber County Trial Court less than a full day later at 1:36 PM on May 13, 2008. The U.S. Mail Carrier for the Defense Counsel's address has confirmed to the Plaintiff, the address listed for the Defense Counsel is in fact a late afternoon drop. The earliest possible time that Defense Counsel could have received a mailed notice was late afternoon of May 13, 2008.
2. There is not another entry on the court docket that copies were made again on or about the dates in question.
3. The only way for the Defense Counsel to have copies of the stamped orders, is if the Defense Counsel was at the Trial Court when the orders were stamped.
4. Regardless of motives, the Defendant in concert with its Counsel plotted to cause the Plaintiff harm during trial. It appears that Defense Counsel has involved an officer of the court based on the activity noted on the docket on May 12, 2008. Not only were these actions a violation of court rules and Utah law, the Plaintiff's case has been prejudiced and the impartial functions

of the court have been directly corrupted.

5. Who benefited by the Plaintiff's 60(b) motion being stayed? The Trial Judge does have some motives, as the Plaintiff's 60(b) motion attacks the very heart of the credibility of the Trial Court's credibility findings. However, the Defendant certainly had more to lose and the actions at issue here beg the Court's review for possible sanctions relating to fraud, subordination of perjury and submitting false evidence.

Upon discovery of these events, the Plaintiff became concerned as to the ethics of the Trial Judge. It is apparent from the docket that the Trial Judge willfully, knowingly and with intent violated court rules, broke the law, violated the sanctity and integrity of the bench, caused material harm to the Plaintiff and, engineered a break down of the judicial process to aid Defendant in the case.

This issue becomes apparent from a review of the docket, that the Defense Counsel met with the Trial Judge ex-parte on May 12, 2008, and the Trial Judge made a decision concerning the Plaintiff's 60(b) motion.

Upon learning the above the Plaintiff inquired of the Trial Clerk as to the background on the stay requesting documentation of the action. The Clerk advised the Plaintiff that "the court lacked jurisdiction because the case is under appeal," further advising that the Judge had instructed her to make the entries on the docket.

On or about July 16, 2008, after unsuccessfully pursuing answers from the Appellant's/Plaintiff's 60(b) Case Brief

Court Administrator, the Plaintiff also learned that its complaint to the Utah Judicial Conduct Commission was stalled because the commission was waiting for new appointments and three reaffirmations. The Plaintiff then contacted Mr. Brent Johnson, Lead Counselor for the Utah Judicial Council. The Plaintiff explained the situation to Mr. Johnson advising that he believed the Trial Court and the Judge appeared to be in violation of: Utah Code Ann. § 78A-2-223(1). A trial court judge shall decide all matters submitted for final determination within two months of submission, unless circumstances causing the delay are beyond the judge's personal control. (Underline added).

The Plaintiff further explained that he contacted the Utah Judicial Council for assistance because of: Utah Code Ann. § 78A-2-223(2). The Judicial Council shall establish reporting procedures for all matters not decided within two months of final submission (underline added).

Mr. Johnson assured the Plaintiff that he would assist if he could. Thereafter, on or about July 30, 2008, Mr. Johnson informed the Plaintiff by phone, that he had contacted the Trial Judge and inquired as to the issue of the Trial Judge's refusal to issue a decision on the Plaintiff's 60(b) motion, Mr. Johnson stated that the Judge informed him that the court lacked jurisdiction over the motion because the case is under appeal. Mr. Johnson also told the Plaintiff that the Trial Judge said that if the Plaintiff would withdraw his appeal the Trial Court could then handle the 60(b) Appellant's/Plaintiff's 60(b) Case Brief

motion.

On August 4, 2008, the Plaintiff wrote a second letter to Mr. Johnson (the first letter presented Utah case law and the rules proving the court was in error), and copied the same to Ms. Pat Bartholomew, a Utah Supreme Court Clerk. (SEE: Exhibit "A" attached hereto). In such communication the Plaintiff states:

Page 1 ¶ 2

"I believe the rules and laws are clear, Judge Baldwin has made a major misstep. I believe Judge Baldwin's jurisdiction issue is clearly false ~"

Page 1 ¶ 4

"Last Friday, August 1 2008, I received my notice from the Appeals Court that I am to start writing my brief for my Appeal. With that notice, I also received a copy of the court record. Upon reviewing the record, I discovered that all mention of what has happened to my motion is missing from the record. Including any mention that my motion has been stayed, thus the appeals court will never know that it existed. Brent, **that is obstruction of justice**, and the Judge has no right to deny me justice."

Mr. Johnson forwarded the Plaintiff's letter to the Trial Judge on that same day, and the Trial Judge denied the 60(b) motion three (3) days later. This action leaves little doubt that the Trial Judge knew all along that the Trial Court retained jurisdiction over 60(b) motions while the case was under appeal, and that the Trial Appellant's/Plaintiff's 60(b) Case Brief

Court was operating with reckless disregard for the truth and justice. As further shown within the Trial Court's ruling; "The Court elected not to address the motion," (emphasis added), the Trial Judge was bias and abused its discretion, as it is a well-established that:

"[T]he initial inquiry of any court should always be to determine whether the requested action is within its jurisdiction." Varian-Eimac, Inc. v. Lamoreaux, 767 P.2d 569, 570 (Utah Ct. App. 1989). "When a matter is outside the court's jurisdiction it retains only the authority to dismiss the action." Id. (Quoting from AKJ v. State (In re DECJ) 2008 UT App 341)

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