2008

# Mark D. Bergman v. Debbie A. Burke, Dorene R. Basug, First American Title : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

The Judge Baldwin heard both the direct and cross examination of all witnesses. He also was able to assess the demeanor of those same witnesses as well as all of Mr. Bergman's witnesses. Judge Baldwin evaluated the credibility of each and every witness that testified the trial on November 13 and 14, 2007. He found that Mr. Isbell's testimony was the "most

credible” of all of the witnesses at the trial. **Record at pages 375 at paragraph 4.** Evaluating witnesses and determining credibility is one of the most important duties and/or responsibilities of a trial court. Judge Baldwin performed his job and responsibilities professionally and within the guidelines set forth in the State of Utah.

Ms. Burke requests that this Court deny Mr. Bergman’s appeal. She also asked this Court to grant her fees and costs on appeal pursuant to the Appellate Rule.

## ARGUMENT

Mr. Bergman did not order a transcript of the trial. He has chosen to make his arguments without providing this Court with the trial testimony of any of the witnesses. Mr. Bergman did not make one citation to the Record at all in his brief. He also did not provide a transcript to the trial court to support his Motion. He failed to marshal any evidence in support of his claims that the district court abused its discretion. Rather, Mr. Bergman presents his argument that he did not need to marshal any evidence in support of his claims, because the district court's findings are "legally insufficient." *See Campbell v. Campbell*, 896 P.2d 635, 638 (Utah Ct. App. 1995). Mr. Bergman continues to ignore the Record.

In essence, Mr. Bergman's Motion argue the same points and facts as his Motion to Alter or Amend a Judgment pursuant to Rule 59. **Record at pages 381 - 86.** He has failed to provide this Court with any additional or adequate information or evidence to support his motions for relief from the Judgment.

Mr. Bergman's argument shall contain the contentions and reasons of the appellant with respect to the issues presented, including the grounds for reviewing any issue not preserved in the trial court, with citations to the authorities, statutes, and parts of the record relied on. Particularly, "[b]riefs must contain reasoned analysis based upon relevant legal authority. An issue is inadequately briefed when the overall analysis of the issue is so lacking as to shift the burden of research and argument to the reviewing court." *State v. Sloan*, 2003 UT App 170, P 13, 72 P.3d 138 (citing *Smith v. Smith*, 1999 UT App 370, P 8, 995 P.2d 14).

### **A. Standard of Review under Rule 60(b).**

A district court has broad discretion to rule on a motion to set aside a default judgment

under rule 60(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. *See Lund v. Brown*, 2000 UT 75, P 9, 11 P.3d 277; *Russell v. Martell*, 681 P.2d 1193, 1194 (Utah 1984); *State Dep't of Soc. Servs. v. Musselman*, 667 P.2d 1053, 1055 (Utah 1983). The appellate courts in Utah review a district court's decision on a Rule 60(b) motion to set aside a judgment under an abuse of discretion standard. *See Menzies v. Galetka*, 2006 UT 81, PP54-55, 150 P.3d 480; *Lund*, 2000 UT 75, P 9, 11 P.3d 277; *Gillmor v. Wright*, 850 P.2d 431, 434 (Utah 1993); *Katz v. Pierce*, 732 P.2d 92, 93 (Utah 1986); *Russell*, 681 P.2d at 1194; *see also Airkem Intermountain, Inc. v. Parker*, 30 Utah 2d 65, 513 P.2d 429, 431 (1973) (“The trial court is endowed with considerable latitude of discretion in granting or denying a motion to relieve a party from a final judgment under Rule 60(b)(1), . . . and the [appellate] court will reverse the trial court only where an abuse of this discretion is clearly established.”). “An appeal of a Rule 60(b) order addresses only the propriety of the denial or grant of relief,” and thus “is narrow in scope.” *Franklin Covey Client Sales, Inc. v. Melvin*, 2000 UT App 110, P19, 2 P.3d 451 (“An appeal of a Rule 60(b) order addresses only the propriety of the denial or grant of relief. . . . [and] does not, at least in most cases, reach the merits of the underlying judgment from which relief was sought.” (quoting 12 James Wm. Moore et al., *Moore's Federal Practice* § 60.41[1][a] (3d ed. 1999))). When reviewing a decision under Rule 60(b), the court should not address the merits of the underlying judgment from which the appellant seeks relief. *See Franklin Covey Client Sales, Inc.*, 2000 UT App 110, P19, 2 P.3d 451 (“An appeal of a Rule 60(b) order addresses only the propriety of the denial or grant of relief. . . . [and] does *not*, at least in most cases, reach the merits of the underlying judgment from which relief was sought.” (internal quotation marks omitted)). However, the court can “reach the merits of the underlying judgment from which relief was

sought,” *id.*, to determine whether the district court abused its discretion. *See Lund*, 2000 UT 75 at P9 (“A decision premised on flawed legal conclusions, for instance, constitutes an abuse of discretion.”). The “court’s ruling must be ‘based on adequate findings of fact’ and ‘on the law,’” thus, “[a] decision premised on flawed legal conclusions . . . constitutes an abuse of discretion.” *See Lund*, 2000 UT 75, P9, 11 P.3d 277.

### **B. Mr. Bergman’s right to relief under Rule 60(b).**

The Utah Rules of Civil Procedure make it possible to gain relief from a judgment under certain circumstances. Rule 60(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure states:

(b) On motion and upon such terms as are just, the court may in the furtherance of justice relieve a party or his legal representative from a final judgment, order, or proceeding for the following reasons: . . .; (2) newly discovered evidence which by due diligence could not have been discovered in time to move for a new trial under Rule 59(b); . . .; (3) fraud (whether heretofore denominated intrinsic or extrinsic), misrepresentation or other misconduct of an adverse party; . . . or (6) any other reason justifying relief from the operation of the judgment. The motion shall be made within a reasonable time and for reasons (1), (2), or (3), not more than 3 months after the judgment, order, or proceeding was entered or taken. A motion under this Subdivision (b) does not affect the finality of a judgment or suspend its operation. This rule does not limit the power of a court to entertain an independent action to relieve a party from a judgment, order or proceeding or to set aside a judgment for fraud upon the court. The procedure for obtaining any relief from a judgment shall be by motion as prescribed in these rules or by an independent action.

Utah R. Civ. P. 60(b)(3), (2), and (6). The only claim in Mr. Bergman’s Motion was that Ms. Burke committed fraud on the court. **Record at pages 530 - 31.** Therefore, Mr. Bergman’s Rule 60(b) Motion was made under subsection 3 for fraud and none of the other subsections. His Motion also included claims against Ms. Burke’s counsel for allegedly helping her commit fraud on the court or engaged in misrepresentation or other misconduct.

During the trial, Mr. Bergman’s counsel did not object to any of the exhibits offered by Ms. Burke. The trial court received all of the exhibits and followed along with those exhibits as

testimony was given by both parties witnesses. It should be remembered that Mr. Bergman had no contemporaneous records for the testimony he gave concerning the 1,200 hours he alleged and estimated to have worked on Ms. Burke's real property. Therefore, he failed his own standard of proof. He only had his oral testimony to support his claimed hours.

In support of his 60(b) motion Mr. Bergman filed his Affidavit in Support of Motion Presenting New Conclusive Evidence "(Bergman Affidavit)". **Record at pages 518 - 29.** In the Bergman Affidavit at paragraph 9 on page 2, Mr. Bergman claims that there were two checks missing from Exhibit D13. **Record at pages 519.** After he received the check from his subpoena, he recognized that check number 3311 had been written to him and he had endorsed that check. *See* Bergman Affidavit at paragraph 10 on page 3. **Record at pages 520.** In other words, check number 3311 was acceptable to Mr. Bergman. Ms. Burke claimed in Exhibit D14 that checks were paid to Mr. Bergman. On that Exhibit were several payments to Mr. Bergman in cash rather than by check. A mistake was made as to check number 3348, which was not identified as a payment in cash to Mr. Bergman. Mr. Isbell testified that he wrote the check and cashed it in order to get \$500.00 in cash to give to Mr. Bergman at his request. Mr. Isbell also wrote a check to Josh Bergman, Mr. Bergman's brother in order for Josh to cash the check and provide the cash to Mr. Bergman. Both Josh Bergman and Mr. Isbell testified to this transaction. Mr. Bergman received payments by check, cash transfers from Ms. Burke's account to Mr. Bergman's account, in cash. Payments depended on the specific circumstances and the requests of Mr. Bergman. The fact that check number 3348 was not included in Exhibit D13 does not change the fact that Mr. Isbell testified to the transaction and the copy of the check would not have changed the fact that Mr. Bergman received \$500.00 from Mr. Isbell on June 7, 2003. The

statements provided in Exhibit D12 also showed the transaction. There was not fraud on the trial court with respect to check number 3348. The bank statements corroborated the testimony of Mr. Isbell and were consistent with the fact set forth in his testimony. Ms. Burke testified as to the true and correct nature of the bank statements. It should be remembered that the Plaintiff propounded no discovery to Ms. Burke in this case. No interrogatories, no admissions, and no request for production of documents were ever submitted to Ms. Burke. During the course of the litigation of this case. Even in the Plaintiff's Motion, he asked the trial court to listen to the CD he provided of the trial. He did not have those sections transcribed. Mr. Bergman has the duty to marshal all of the evidence to support his allegations and identify where in the Record, the trial court abused its discretion, he has not even attempted to cite the Record. Now he asked this Court to seek out any facts that may tend to support his wild and bare allegation in his Motion. This Court should decline to perform Mr. Bergman's job of identifying any errors in the Record or trial. There were no errors to locate.

However, if this Court chooses to consider Mr. Bergman's claims that the evidence is "new conclusive evidence" which he discovered after the trial, then it should be noted again, that Mr. Bergman conducted no discovery during the course of prosecuting his case. He failed to ask any admission, interrogatories, or requests for production of documents to Ms. Burke during any time during the litigation. Mr. Bergman could have discovered all documents pertinent to Ms. Burke's defense had he conducted any discovery. Mr. Bergman is not entitled to the requested relief pursuant to Rule 60(b)(2). *See Promax Dev. Corp. v. Mattson*, 943 P.2d 247, 253 (Utah Ct. App. 1997) (stating that newly discovered evidence must be material and "substantial enough that with the evidence there is a reasonable likelihood of a different result").

Mr. Bergman also filed a Memorandum Supporting Plaintiff's Motion Relating to Conclusive Evidence that Defendant Committed Fraud upon the Court ("Memorandum"). **Record at pages 514 - 17.** The Memorandum simply asked that the trial court disallow all cash payments to Mr. Bergman, despite the oral testimony to the contrary. Ms. Burke, Mr. Isbell, and Josh Bergman all testified to one or more of the cash payment to Mr. Bergman. Mr. Bergman's counsel cross examined all of these witnesses. The trial court heard both the direct and cross examination of all witnesses. The trial court also was able to assess the demeanor of those same witnesses as was all of Mr. Bergman's witnesses. Judge Baldwin evaluated the credibility of each and every witness that testified the trial in November 2007. The trial court found that Mr. Isbell's testimony was the "most credible" of all of the witnesses. **Record at pages 375 at paragraph 4.** Mr. Bergman has once again failed to marshal any evidence to support his naked allegations that Ms. Burke and her counsel perpetrated a fraud on the trial court. This Court should deny Mr. Bergman's appeal.

**C. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion on or about May 12, 2008, when it moved sua sponte and stay the Plaintiff's 60(b) Motion?**

Mr. Bergman argues that when the district court stayed his Request to Submit for Decision until there was a decision from the Utah Supreme Court was an abuse of the court's discretion. It should be remembered that Mr. Bergman did not provide a transcript to this Court or even cite to the Record in either of his appeals. He has failed to supply any evidence to support the claimed errors or abuse of discretion he attributes the trial court.

To support his claims that Mr. Bergman was improperly denied the relief he requested in his Motion, he had the burden to provide this Court with an adequate record on appeal. *See State*

*v. Wulffenstein*, 657 P.2d 289, 293 (Utah 1982), *cert. denied*, 460 U.S. 1044, 103 S. Ct. 1443, 75 L. Ed. 2d 799 (1983) (stating when "a defendant predicates error to [an appellate court], he has the duty and responsibility of supporting such allegation by an adequate record"; an appellate court "simply cannot rule on a question which depends for its existence upon alleged facts unsupported by the record"). Mr. Bergman failed to provide an adequate record. He did not order a transcript of the proceedings or even cite to the Record. Accordingly, this Court must presume the regularity of the district court proceedings. *See State v. Rawlings*, 829 P.2d 150, 152-53 (Utah Ct. App. 1992) (upholding trial court's order because "in the absence of an adequate record on appeal, this Court cannot address the issues raised and presume the correctness of the disposition made by the trial court"). An abuse of the trial court's discretion may be found where the court's determination of reasonableness is unsupported by evidence in the record as explained in the court's findings of fact. *Id.*, *Quinn v. Quinn, Jr.*, 820 P.2d 282 (Utah Ct. App. 1992).

Mr. Bergman argues that the trial court erred in ruling on and denying his Motion after more than two months in violation to Utah Code Ann. § 78A-2-223. Even if Mr. Bergman is correct in his assertion that the trial court abused its discretion by making this ruling, his argument fails to demonstrate how this alleged error was harmful or prejudicial to him in any way. "Harmless error is defined . . . as an error that is sufficiently inconsequential that we conclude there is no reasonable likelihood that the error affected the outcome of the proceedings." *Crookston v. Fire Ins. Exch.*, 817 P.2d 789, 796 (Utah 1991) (quotations and citations omitted); *see also State v. Verde*, 770 P.2d 116, 120 (Utah 1989) ("Errors we label harmless' are errors which . . . are sufficiently inconsequential that we conclude there is no

reasonable likelihood that the error affected the outcome of the proceedings.”). “Put in other words, an error is harmful only if the likelihood of a different outcome is sufficiently high as to undermine our confidence in the verdict.” *Id.* “On appeal, the appellant has the burden of demonstrating an error was prejudicial--that there is a reasonable likelihood that the error affected the outcome of the proceedings.” *Steffensen v. Smith's Mgmt. Corp.*, 820 P.2d 482, 489 (Utah Ct. App. 1991) (quotations and citation omitted), *aff'd*, 862 P.2d 1342 (Utah 1993). Mr. Bergman argues that when the district court stayed ruling on his Motion until there was a decision from the Utah Supreme Court was an abuse of the court’s discretion. Because Mr. Bergman has failed to carry his burden under the harmless error analysis by demonstrating that the alleged error committed by the trial court was prejudicial, his argument is without merit and this Court should affirm the ruling of the trial court.

**D. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it elected to not inform the Plaintiff or issue a court order detailing the grounds for the stay?**

Mr. Bergman argues that when the district court stayed ruling on his Motion until there was a decision from the Utah Supreme Court was an abuse of the court’s discretion. The trial court is responsible for its own calendar and managing its case load. The trial court was well within its discretion to delay its ruling on Mr. Bergman’s Rule 60(b) Motion. District courts typically do not inform parties of the reasoning behind, they take motions and other procedural issues under advisement. Assuming that Mr. Bergman is correct in his assertion that the trial court abused its discretion in failing to “not inform the Plaintiff or issue a court order detailing the grounds for the stay,” his argument fails to demonstrate how this alleged error, if it is an

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